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PRESS:
ITEM NO. 1:

Claudine San Nicholas, The Maui News

FY 2006 BUDGET

(C.c. 05-63)

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). .. I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee meeting for March 17, 2005.
For the record, we have Committee
Members Johnson, Ms. Jo Anne Johnson from West Maui; Councilmember Mike Molina
from Makawao-Haiku-Paia District; my colleague from Lanai, Council Chair
Riki Hokama; also, Ms. Charmaine Tavares from Upcountry-Kula. Excused at this point
and they should be arriving ... Council member Carroll is excused for the evening, he is
unable to attend this evening's meeting; and on their way, we believe, is
Councilmembers Anderson, Pontanilla and Mateo.
Good evening, Kihei. We're going to go ahead and start off with the public testimony
tonight and provide you folks an opportunity to comment on the 2006 Budget. If you do
have a cell phone or a pager, we ask that you please turn it to the off or to the silent
mode, and that way we can avoid any unnecessary distractions.
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We'll provide you with a total of four minutes and at three minutes, we'll let you know of
the third minute, and that way it'll provide you ample time to conclude your comments.
And then, please, make sure that you state your name for the record. We are recording
everything, so speak into the mike and if you can, you can face us and, and speak clearly.
And finally, if there are any questions, we want you, when you finish, let us know that
you're done, and then we'll ask if there's any questions to clarify your comments and then
we'll, we'll thank you for your comments.
At this time, we're going to go ahead with Mr. Curt Leonard and Mr. Leonard, before I
start with you 1, forgive me, we do have a student that did make a request because of
school, so we'd like to accommodate that student at this time if there's no objection,
Members?
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: No objection.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. We have Carol, and I'm sorry, Matasui [sic]?

.. .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. MAT ASCI: Matasci.
CHAIR KANE: Matasci, I'm sorry. If you can, please come forward. Thank you.
MS. MATASCI: Okay. Thank you. I came here this evening to testify on behalf of the Maui
Economic Development Board and their Women and Technology project. They, I
participated in the Tech Careers Program last year, and this year, I organized a program
of my own with their help and their help I really appreciated it. And I think the program
is great in offering all of these opportunities to women in fields of science and technology
and encouraging girls to pursue these fields. And in showing them, yeah, there, that it
can be possible and it's a real opportunity and a possibility.
And you know Jenny e-mails me all the time with things like, tomorrow night I'm going
to a presentation with some of the companies from the performance center up there and
all kinds of things that, I think, really help encourage girls to pursue careers in science
and technology where they might not have in the first place. So, I'd like to encourage you
to continue supporting their organization. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Before you leave, if you can, please, again, state your name for the
record, and hang on if we have any questions.
MS. MATASCI: Okay. My name is Carol Matasci and I'm a senior at Baldwin High School.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions?
MS. MATASCI: Okay.
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CHAIR KANE: Hearing none, thank you very much. There has been one more student, so
Mr. Leonard, thank you for your patience. Victoria Ann Yadao. Okay. Ms. Yadao is on
her way up, and Ms. Yadao will be followed by Mr. Curt Leonard.
MS. Y ADAO: I'd like to say, thank you for putting, I'd like to say, thank you to Women and
Technology for putting together Excite Camp. It was really fun for me and I learned a lot
of things, such as how there are many jobs open for a lot of people that people wouldn't
think are open. And I'd like, and I'd like, I'd like, I liked going to it and I had a lot of fun
in it.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Your name is, please?
MS. Y ADAO: Victoria Ann Yadao.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Yadao. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much.
MS. Y ADAO: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Curt Leonard. Thank you, Mr. Leonard. Mr. Leonard will be followed by
Mr. Chuck Martin.
MR. LEONARD: Good evening and happy Saint Patrick's Day. My name is Curt Leonard and I
work for a company called the Oceanit here in the tech park. And I'm here on behalf of
the Maui Economic Development Board this evening. I'd like to share with you some of
the collaborations that we've had with, with MEDB, specifically, some things that we've
done in the past six to eight months. So, this is all new stuff that we're working on with
them.
The first one I'd like to bring your attention is something called the Hamana Internship
Program in which we, we reach out to some of the high school students in Maui County
and encourage them to come work for, for Oceanit and Science Company to excite them,
encourage them to consider a career in science. Now, this is a program that was
50 percent funded through a grant the MEDB found for Oceanit. We have three students
in here working this, this internship currently, they're all college-bound. As a matter of
fact, last week we wrote a reference for one of them to attend MIT, so we have some
really good talent here we're trying to develop.
The second program I want to bring to your attention is something called the Kamaaina
Come Home Program, and that's something that Ocean it has again worked with MEDB.
They gave us a reference for a young lady that was born and raised in the islands, went to
school up in Seabury Hall, and we, we recruited her as a reference, we recruited her and
ultimately hired her. And she's been working with Oceanit since July, so we're very
excited about that.
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We need to get out of Parks and Recs. and be recognized as public safety. We are, we're
under 911 and that's public safety; we're an emergency service agency along with Fire,
Medics and Police. We all are trained on, as first responders and we all have the same
equivalent training, which is first responder. So, whenever dispatch calls us, everybody
on scene has the same training, and we're too, too big now for Parks and Recs. We need
money for our Department and to better service our equipment and storage facilities.
Right now, some of our headquarters and storage facilities are crammed between
bathroom parks that are very unsanitary and very unhealthy for our employees, and it's
hard to work like that sometimes and the community recognizes it as well. We, we're
ongoing with re-organization of our Department, and we'd like to also consider, if you
could, Lieutenants positions and positions that would properly staff our Department.
Right now, we have one Captain per district and our chain of command is contacting our
Captain, first chain of command, if there's an emergency. If our Captain is at his weekly
meeting, we're, there's no Lieutenant to fill that slot. So, we're, there's a void right there
as far as safety is concerned. So, our men are out there on the front line; when something
happens, the captain is in town at a meeting or getting supplies. We need to have that
structure as Fire and Police do as well. We'd appreciate if you guys can consider that.
Also, better telephone and radio communications. Right now, we have one phone that
works out of three in Kihei. It's very unsafe to work like that in case there is an
emergency or we need to communicate between towers to, due to hazardous beach
conditions. And our radio system we're sharing with ACO officers. We may be in the
middle of a medical situation with a-MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MR. MARTIN: --patient has a spinal injury and then we get, ACO 1 to ACO base, do you have
that injured cockatiel from Lahaina? You know, it's not happening and people overhear
that on the radio as well. The public hears it when we're there dealing with their
emergency. So, you know, I'm sure that if you had a loved one laying there, and they're
trying to get medics, and all of a sudden, they're trying to fight with animal control
officers it isn't professional at all. So, if you can help us with that we'd appreciate it.
Our goals, also, is if we were to reorganize we'd like to work 10 hour days to better
service the community. Last week Monday, we had two 911 calls after 4:30, one in
Kihei. We were warning the people, we had very hazardous conditions. Ten minutes
after we left, there was a crowd of people with a spinal injury on the beach. To better
service the community if we work 10 hour days that would be a plus for everybody, and
we're willing to do that. And if you can just consider the wish list that I've-MS. KOLLER: Four minutes.
MR. MARTIN: --presented to you. Okay. Time is up.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Hang on one second.
MR. MARTIN: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any questions? Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Martin, for coming. You said that only
one of your three phones work?
MR. MARTIN: Correct. And that phone I bought myself with my own money.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are they cell phones?
MR. MARTIN: No. They're cordless phones. Our phones aren't in the tower. We have electric
in the towers, but right now the phone jacks are in bathroom facilities, and so we have to
buy cordless phones. The 2.4 gigahertz phone barely reaches the tower. We have phones
in Flemmings in the tower. I've been asking for that, I wish would could get it. And that
way if I need to call Kamaole III, I need backup right now, I can call the guy. A lot of
our guys are using their personal Nextel or cell phone minutes to communicate daily.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: How come the phones aren't working? What's wrong with
them?
MR. MARTIN: They, they were never installed properly. They were never installed properly.
In Kamaole I, our phone jack is in our storage facility about 100 yards away from the
tower, so when I have to call the office and if there's a drowning on the beach, I can't see
the beach because I'm in, I'm in an enclosed, brick building.
So, if we had phones in the tower I can talk to the office, talk to the weather guy that calls
every day, Hilo weather, and I can monitor the beach at the same time. Real
simple ...just real easy stuff like that. But for public safety we need to get those things
going.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much. We appreciate you coming and
sharing your testimony.
MR. MARTIN: Yeah. Thank you. One last thing I was going to mention, too, that we're
working on just so you know I'm, I'm working on it myself. I'd like to get swim buoys in
the Kihei area to better safety our, our swimming community down there. When the jet
skis open up pretty soon, they do come inside 100 yards of the beaches and we have
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swim buoys outside Wahikuli Park right now. We need them from the Kihei boat ramp
to Charlie Young's.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that's not on your list?
MR. MARTIN: No. That's not on our list.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We'll add it.
MR. MARTIN: That's something I'm working on, I've written letters to the Mayor, the
Governor. I've got a hold of the gentleman that has the maintenance program for swim
buoys, no, for all the buoys through the State in Lahaina, and he's trying to work with us,
too. But right now, the thing that sparked my interest is a yellow buoy was set outside
Charlie Young's Beach, and they obtained the permits to set this buoy for a profit on the
internet, so you can go online and listen to live whale songs. I'm trying to set buoys for
public safety.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Martin.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much.
MR. MARTIN: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions? Hang on one second, Mr. Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good evening, Mr. Martin. In regards to
the telephone phone lines, you say that it wasn't installed properly? Wasn't installed
properly by the phone company or somebody else?
MR. MARTIN: The towers had never had phones put in, in them. The telephone jacks are in
bathroom facilities about 50 yards away from the towers, so that's improper to me. The
phones should be in the tower, because we have a phone in the tower at Flemmings, and
it works-COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: So, if a request was made to install the phones at the
tower, can that be done, looking at the terrain that you work on?
MR. MARTIN: Yeah, yeah. 'Cause there's, there's, we have electric already in there and we
store our, our 911, our 800 megahertz radios in there with battery. So and like I said,
they have them at Flemmings and at Canoe Beach. So, yeah, jacks can be put in those
towers pretty easily. We'd appreciate it.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MR. MARTIN: Yeah. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Martin, you know, I just wanted clarification. You feel
ocean safety should be made a separate Department from the Parks.
MR. MARTIN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Do you feel that, I guess, was there part of the reason that
some of these requests that you're making will not be able to be realized if you were still
to remain under the Parks Department?
MR. MARTIN: Yeah. Because of the rate that we are growing; storage facilities; new
equipment; we're going to be increasing our staffing pretty soon. Sometime or another,
I'm sure Makena is going to reopen, and I can't see the Parks' umbrella covering
everything the way that, that it is right now, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Alright. Thank you.
MR. MARTIN: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Have you spoken to Parks about this and you know do they
have any feed back for you?
MR. MARTIN: Kind of, we've, we've mentioned this before. Yes. And no feedback, which,
you know, I'm not going to comment on.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. MARTIN: But you know when you look at these brochures here and it says, public safety,
Fire, would you consider our Department public safety? Or would you consider it a
recreation service? That's what I'm trying to get at, you know. And I saw in the brochure
last time at the Mayor's budget hearing, I was embarrassed for my Department because
we, we are public safety and we do annual, physical performance training along with our
medical refresher courses. It all pertains to public safety and in the Parks and Rec.
brochure the only thing that they had mentioned about ocean safety was summer guards
in Hana and a new tower at Hookipa.

-9-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 17, 2005 (Kihei)

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Let me ask you a question. In any of the other State
Departments -- and if you don't know the answer, that's fine -- but in any of the other
Counties within the State, how are their officers? Are they attached to Parks or are they
attached to-MR. MARTIN: No. I believe they're Fire; Kauai is Fire; I think the Big Island is going to be
Fire; Oahu is Medics and-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. MARTIN: --you know, Maui, we, we are spearheading techniques as far as water rescues
here.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Martin, thank you. You've answered the question.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I really appreciate and we'll take a look at it during the
budget deliberations, too, and I really thank you very much.
MR. MARTIN: Sure. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
MR. MARTIN: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Any other questions from the Members? I have a question, Mr. Martin.
You've, you've referenced, our plan or this plan. Are you speaking on behalf of other
individuals-MR. MARTIN : Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --as well?
MR. MARTIN: Yes. Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And is that part of the, the, the ocean safety officers?
MR. MARTIN: Yes, sir.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. MARTIN: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Martin, thank you very much.
MR. MARTIN: Okay. Mahalo.
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CHAIR KANE: And please feel free to provide any additional information for, to the
Committee. We'd appreciate they getting that as well.
MR. MARTIN: Alright. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Okay. Next to testify we have Erica Ott, one of our
students, Ms. Ott, and following Erica is Tori Crim. Thank you. Okay and just introduce
yourselves, please. Thank you.
MS. TEMPLE: I'm Peggy Temple and I'm a seventh-grade math teacher at Lokelani
Intermediate School here in Kihei. And we've come to just share with you our
experiences and give you our thanks for the Women and Technology Introduce a Girl to
Engineering Day. Students, they were 13 girls who presented middle-school engineering
projects at the district, Maui District science fair this year, the first-ever middle school.
Following that, they had the opportunity of shadowing a real engineer here on their
island. And an island that has so few women engineers it was an excellent opportunity
and opened up the doors to the future. So, they came just to quickly show you their
projects that they did and tell you of their experiences for that day. Erica. Oh, you want
to see it, too?
MR. JOINER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: We want to see it, too .... (inaudible) ...
MS. TEMPLE: Okay.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) ...
MS. TEMPLE: Well, she, she could, she could tell them and then she could turn around and
show you.
MR. JOINER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Okay. Thanks.
MISS OTT: I made a clipper keeper and it's a receptacle for fingernail clippings, and how it
works is it's a sphere and you put your finger in one side and the clippers in the other and
the clippings stay inside. And to empty it you just pull it apart and empty it. And my
goal was to, for the clipper keeper to hold all the clippings in my test(?). On the
engineering Women and Technology day, I went with a sewage plant engineer and they
made things for the, the, the .. .I don't know what it's called.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And your name is, ma'am?
MISS OTT: Erica Ott.
CHAIR KANE: Great, Erica. Thank you. Tory, you want to make some comments?
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MISS CRIM: I'm Tory Crim and I made the couch potato. It's a better TV dinner tray, so that if
you bump it all your food doesn't fall onto the table. And the plate and mustard and
ketchup holders they'd Velcro on so that you can wash them.
And at the Women and Technology day, I followed Scott Rollins. He, he works, he's an
engineer and I went to a sewage plant and where they treated the sewage water, and I
learned that it takes a lot of work to do that, 'cause it has to go through a lot of little areas
before it can be almost drinkable but not quite.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, ladies. Any questions for the testifiers? And if we can
have your math teacher sign up as well, please, since you did make some comments for
us.
MS. TEMPLE: ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR KANE: Oh, great. Thank you.
MS. TEMPLE: ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. JOINER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Can we see?
MS. TEMPLE: ... (inaudible) ...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Can we see?
MS. TEMPLE: ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR KANE: Sure or what we could do is we can, if you don't mind-AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR KANE: --you can kind of set it up on the back, one of the back tables and people can go
at their convenience. Thank you very much. Next to testify we have Sylvia Reilly.
Following Ms. Reilly is Keith Campbell.
MS. REILLY: Hi. I'm a teacher with MEO Head Start, and I would like you to continue
funding us and I do thank you. I'm sorry . Yeah. Alright. And I have a parent to speak.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Go ahead.
MS. REILLY: I'm done.
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CHAIR KANE: Again, folks, it's really important that you state your name for the record, so
that way we can attach your name to your comments and so we know who said what.
MS. REILLY: Okay. I'll try again-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. REILLY: --'cause I did say it. My name is Sylvia Reilly-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. REILLY: --I'm a teacher with MEO Head Start, and I would like to thank you for your, for
funding us and to continue funding us. I do have a parent, Ana Garcia, who would like to
speak and back that up. Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. GARCIA: Hi. Good evening. My name is Ana Garcia and I'm a parent of one of the kids
at Kihei A Head Start. He's been in the program for the second year, and I just would
like to thank you for the support you've given the program. Because this allows the
parents to either work, go to school or do both things, which was very positive.
My personal experience is that I was able to go back to college and I'm going to graduate
in the Fall in accounting. And I'm planning to continue and get a bachelor's degree. I
would like to let you know that this program in Head Start isn't just another preschool, it's
a comprehensive program where the kids learn good manners and good education,
positive discipline, and they also learn to get along with other children. And that really
helps them and helps the parents as well.
And aside from the MEO Head Start, I would also like to speak on behalf of the Hispanic
Link, which is the only office in this island that serves the Hispanic community. And
right now, the Hispanic community it's about 10 to 15 percent of the population in Maui.
Also the Kihei Youth Center: I have five children, not just the one in the Head Start. And
my older ones attend the Kihei Youth Center, and I just would like to let you know that
it's getting too small for the amount of children attending. They need a bigger place and
they need more funds, too, you know, to make it more fun for them, to have more
resources.
Also, for the MEO transportation: one of my kids is in Maui High and he takes the bus
every day because he takes judo practice in there. So on the way back, he takes the MEO
bus.
And one last thing: we need a gym here in Kihei for our basketball games and all that,
because every time it rains they have to cancel the games. And I think that's a need, a
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need in the school, really. I mean, Kihei is growing really, really fast and if you have any
funds left please help the Kihei High School, because, you know, we need a bigger
school here too, for the Maui high schoolers. And that's it. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Garcia, Ms. Reilly. Any questions, Members? Hearing none,
thank you very much, ladies. Next to testify, Mr. Keith Campbell, and following
Mr. Campbell is Tony Fisher.
MR. CAMPBELL: I am here this evening representing the Hui Noeau up in Makawao. You're
all familiar with the problems they've been having in the last two or three months, almost
being bought out. This is a very, very unusual piece of property.
I moved into Maui about 1991, 1991 I guess it was, and one of the things that I've done
every year is to join and belong to the Hui and participate in their activities. It's true that
while most of the activities are members of. .. kind of handled by members of the upper
area of this County, allow the children down in the southern areas down in the city areas
do not really understand how good and how impressive that facility is. They are working
very hard to, of course, improve this facility.
It's, I have belonged to at least three or four of the activities, but jewelry was one of them;
woodworking was another one; printing is another one. All of them are very good and
with very good instructors. But they don't have really the capabilities of equipments that
they should have, and one of the things that's going to happen, as I have now bought this
facility and improving it will be to improve these facilities, and I can ensure you that it's
going to take a lot of money.
So, I noticed it's, they have requested a $150,000 from the County. That money will be
spent wisely, and if the people down in the city, in the County and other places use that
facility they'll be well worth it, and I can ensure you there's nothing like it, I don't think,
on any island in the islands of Maui or Hawaii. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Campbell-MR. CAMPBELL: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --if you can state your name, so we know that you're Mr. Campbell, please.
MR. CAMPBELL: I'm Mr. Campbell-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. CAMPBELL: --I think.
AUDIENCE: ... (laughter). ..
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CHAIR KANE: Again folks, I know it's funny and I'm being persistent, but please if you can,
please state your name for the records, so we know how to address you. Thank you.
Mr. Fisher followed by Mr. Scott Weeks [sic], I believe.
MR. FISHER: My name is Tony Fisher. Mr. Fisher was my father, by the way, my name is
Tony. I want to talk about three separate and distinct items. I want to talk about the
budget; I want to talk about taxes; and I want to talk about assessments.
The budget: when I read it in the paper the other day and I got a copy tonight I got these
numbers ... 19 percent increase in the budget over last year. I have lived all over the
country, I have never heard of a governmental organization that went up 19 percent in
one year. A 23 percent increase in property values, that's wonderful providing we don't
then make the taxes go along with it, because that's going to cost everybody a lot of
money. Twenty three percent, I, again, get it in tax assessments. The bonds go from
191/2 million to $42 million? That is an outrageous amount. And last but not least a
16 percent increase in spending this year.
When I, whenever I look at something like this I always say, if you're spending more the
money has gotta come from somewhere. Hey folks, I'm a taxpayer and that's the only
place you're going to get income from is people like me. I got my funny little card in the
mail and it went up 22112 percent, you were right, Mr., Mr. Mayor, it was around
23 percent. I got some calls in the last couple of days though. One guy's went up
77 percent, a guy you all know, Bill T, Bill Tavares; another guy going up 100 percent.
Those numbers are scary.
The average of 23 percent doesn't mean anything, that means half of the people are gonna
pay more and half of them are going to pay less. The average is absolutely meaningless.
Taxes, home owners are going to get a 23 percent increase is what this is about
to ... (inaudible) ... , it's really the assessment, but that's what it would be less 15 percent
'cause we're going to get a homeowners' reduction down to three dollars. That's
wonderful except for one thing: that means that our taxes are going to go up eight percent
unless you happen to be Bill Tavares, which it's going to go up a lot more because he got
a 77 percent.
My comment here, I just wrote a little note, this is outrageous. These numbers, I'll tell
you the last time I saw these kind of numbers, I'll tell you the last time. It was 1977, it
was in California and there were a couple of guys named Howard Jarvis and
... (CHANGE TAPE) ... please, Mr. Legislature, which is what you folks are. Don't do
this to us, don't do this to us. And they did and it was something came along called
Prop 13, which I think is, as I told a lot of you, I think is a bad idea.
I went and looked at the assessments because I thought that was a very interesting thing, I
went back and looked at my last few years and then I called some people-MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
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MR. FISHER: Thank you. The assessments on land and the building should go up and down
together, that would be a very reasonable thing to have happen. Somebody told me today
that no, they're, they're depreciating. I got news for you, in my house, in my
neighborhood the houses are not depreciating. I don't care whether they're declining from
the standpoint of being run down or not, but they are not depreciating. They are going up
in value.
I got some numbers from some people that look like: my, my, my land went up
85 percent but my building only went up 2 percent. Last year my house, my land went up
50 percent, but my house actually went down 10 percent. I don't see how that can
happen. I have a fairly new, I got a 10-year old house, it is not depreciating. There's, I,
you have heard me say in this group before, I think this thing is broken. If they are
assessing that way, I know it's broken.
You know what makes me feel good though, there is a group of nine people in this
County who can-MS. KOLLER: Four minutes.
MR. FISHER: --flip(?) this thing and fix it and I hope you will do that. And I thank you very
much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Tony. Members, any questions for the testifier? Hearing none.
Thank you very much.
MR. FISHER: And I've got one other comment, get a fire engine for, I mean, a fire station for
Danny Mateo's Molokai.
AUDIENCE: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. FISHER: That's a whole separate issue.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Next to testify is Scott Weeks [sic] and again forgive me if I
mispronouncing anybody's name. And following Mr. Weeks [sic] is Lynne Woods.
Good evening, sir.
MR. WEEKER: Good evening. My name is Scott Weeker. My spelling, my writing is bad. My
name is Scott Weeker and I'm the president of a small research and development
company called Hawaii Wave Technologies up at the MRTC and tonight I'd like to
testify in behalf of the MEDB. I'd ask for consideration for continued funding, because I
think they represent significant return on investment in three areas.
The first area is in business development and revenues, of course. The work that MEDB
does to help promote Maui as a real place to do business makes it credible, helps us,
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helps businesses like mine and others attract customers and sales. But it also helps us
attract venture capital and government contracts.
The second area of investment is in people, in jobs, and we person ... , some of the young
people tonight it's, it's an important job trying to focus on our key problem, which is to
find, train and keep qualified people in skilled positions. So, that's very important and if
we can not only attract them but also bring back some of our Hawaii people to Maui,
that's, that's a key goal.
And finally, it's an investment in the future and a lot of it has to do with an optimistic
encouragement of new businesses. And for my, my case, MEDB helped me not only get
started, provided services ranging from accounting to help with Act 221 to patent
strategies, to recently helping us secure a government contract for research. And so,
those are all returns on investment I think are important, building jobs, helping people
and building our future. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Weeker. Members, any questions for the testifier? Hearing
none, thank-MR. WEEKER: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --you very much.
followed by Robert Riebling.

Next to testify Lynne Woods and Ms. Woods will be

MS. WOODS: He was tall. Good evening, Chairman Kane, Committee Members. My name is
Lynne Woods and I testify before you as president of the Maui Chamber of Commerce
on behalf of our business members. The Chamber supports the continued funding of our
Maui Visitors Bureau. Our success in the visitor industry is due to the support of our past
and current Mayors and Council Members with their investments of our County
taxpayers dollars as well as the excellent job done by our Visitors Bureau. Given the
approximate 26 to 27 thousand individuals directly employed by the visitor industry and
many of the remainder of our citizens being employed by companies servicing the visitor
industry, this investment of our tax payers' dollars is most wise.
The Mayor has set aside $3.5 million, the same amount as the 2004-2005 Budget. This
amount does not allow for the increase of doing business for the Visitors Bureau, and, so
we hope you, as our Council, will take that into consideration during our deliberations.
Thank you very much for your consideration of our testimony, and we know and thank
you for all of the many hours that you're going to be spending with these budget hearings
over the next two and a half months. Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Woods. Members, questions for the testifier? Hearing none,
thank you very much.
MS. WOODS: Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Robert Riebling followed by Mr. Ted Fox.
MR. RIEBLING: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Rob Riebling. I'm president of
the Maalaea Community Association. You know we've been asking the Mayor and the
Council for many years to construct a sidewalk on the only street we have in our
community. And we've told you how pedestrians have no place to walk but the traffic
lanes because of wall-to-wall parked cars. We've shown you pictures of pedestrians
jumping out of the way of speeding cars, and we've sent you letters of endorsement from
90 percent of our condo associations. In short, everybody in Maalaea wants that
sidewalk.
Last year, at our annual meeting, Mayor Arakawa told our citizens, quote, "sidewalks
don't cost much money; I'll put one in for you," unquote. So last year, you, Council
authorized $50,000 for a design study for our sidewalk. And I personally walked the
street with Nolly Yagin of Public Works, and I was told that a consultant would be
contracted to do a design study. As an engineer myself, I asked him to coordinate any
details or problems that might emerge with me.
So, we were quite dismayed when we found out on Tuesday that the Kihei-Makena
Capital Improvements budget proposal that the Mayor sent you had nothing at all in it for
the Maalaea sidewalk. It seemed to us as though the Mayor had dropped the ball. Now
however, we're told by the Mayor's office that our sidewalk is not in his budget, because
Public Works told him that at one point down the street the roadway would have to be
widened by one foot and thereby encroach on A&B ag land.
That point, by the way, is a place where people illegally dump trash now and the
homeless park their vans in a weed patch. If anybody from Public Works or the Mayor's
office had informed us last November when the Public Works' budget was being put
together, we could have worked this out.
In the first place, we disagree with the finding that the road would encroach, based on the
earlier advice of another engineer from Public Works, but we'll grant them that point,
we'll say okay it encroaches. We have excellent working relationships with A&B,
cooperating for years with Chubby Vicens and now currently with Grant Chun. And I'm
convinced that A&B would give the County one foot of land in a weed patch, so we can
have our sidewalk.
So, Council Members, we turn to you for help. You have upcoming budget negotiations
with the Administration, and I am told the Administration is going to amend the budget
proposal to reinstate the sidewalk based on this new information. So, we ask you to put a
line item, working with the Administration, put a line item in the Kihei-Makena Capital
Improvements budget for construction of the Maalaea sidewalk. If you do that, I
guarantee you I will deliver the necessary release from A&B.
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MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MR. RIEBLING: I personally guarantee you that. So, before this budget is signed into law
we're going to iron out this technical detail, and you'll be hearing more about this before
long. So, we elected you guys to work for us. Please finally, let us have our sidewalk.
Incidentally, Dr. Fox has an emergency and will not be here. I have copies of my written
testimony. Hand in?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MR. RIEBLING: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, Mr. Riebling. Members, any questions? Ms. Anderson.
Mr. Riebling, if you can, please come forward, and we'll have a question or two for you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi, Mr. Riebling.
MR. RIEBLING: Hi.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks for coming and giving us your testimony. Do you
recall how much of the $50,000 design fee was expended?
MR. RIEBLING: Well, from what Don Couch told me tonight, all of it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: All of it was expended?
MR. RIEBLING: Right, which doesn't really make much sense, because if they thought they
couldn't construct the sidewalk I don't understand why they would design one.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So ...
MR. RIEBLING: But the answer is yes, apparently they have spent it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I, they spent it pretty quick because at December
there was no, none of it was spent.
MR. RIEBLING: Well, I'm relying on what Don Couch told me this evening and I don't want to,
I don't want to contradict him, but-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's fine.
MR. RIEBLING: --I'm sure-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's fine.
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MR. RIEBLING: --he can straighten that out.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's fine. Do you have any idea, you know, just in
general terms what it's going to cost, aside from maybe purchase of land, to actually
construct the sidewalk?
MR. RIEBLING: Okay. The original estimate made for Fiscal '05 was $600,000, that's what the
Mayor turned in last year. The way the whole thing is set up there should be no taking of
land or no buying of land. There's a County easement that runs along the street, that's
where the sidewalk is to be put. And we deliberately chose it that way, so we wouldn't
have to spend years haggling with condo associations over an inch of their land. By the
same token, on the other side of the street is Ag land. So, there shouldn't be anybody's
land taken.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. RIEBLING: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions? And, and just as a note, we went over our
quarterly report just a couple of days ago, and Ms. Anderson is correct. As of the second
quarter report, which is the December 31 st, zero money was expended out of that, of that
line item. So-MR. RIEBLING: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --just for your information.
MR. RIEBLING: Thank you for that information, because we didn't know that at all.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
MR. RIEBLING: They haven't contacted us one way or the other. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Riebling. And thank you for letting us know that Mr. Fox is
not available. Thank you. Next to speak is Mr. Buck Joiner, and following Mr. Joiner is
James and Doris Williamson.
MR. JOINER: Aloha kakou. Committee Members, thank you very much for being here and
coming to Kihei. I have just two items for you tonight, maybe, if I don't get too carried
away. About four and a half years ago, I started on a mission to check on the
condominium use classifications. You'll remember that I mentioned it before this body
and I also took it to the Apana Administration, and it was ignored. When Arakawa came
in, I had to take it to him several times and then finally they did act on that. And in
checking the condominium use they, they found that there was in excess of 25 percent
that were misreporting, which ultimately resulted in income to the County, additional
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income of $11;'2 million at no increase in the tax rate. Now that was a good thing, even
though I think that, that needed to be a little stronger. Rather than a survey it needed to
be a declaration.
The thing is this needs to be carried onto other property classifications. Okay . You can't
just say condominiums. One, that's not the only place where the violations are; and
Number 2, it's not fair to just pick on those people. Okay. So, I'm a homeowner,
residential home, you need to ask me what I'm doing with my stuff.
This is very important that it be done, but it can't be done by the Property Tax
Department in the condition that they are right now. They need more people and more
resources to be able to do this. When they did the condominium thing it damn near
destroyed the Department. They almost had mass resignations because of the extreme
pressure and demands put on them. They cannot do this without additional resources.
That is not included in your budget, so you need to look into that, ask them. And I don't
know how many more people they need or what additional resources, but they need that
to be able to do that job to carry it forward. If we don't, there is a possibility that some
condo owners may sue us, because we're not treating all tax owners or property owners
fairly. So, there is money to be gotten out there for sure and the same kind of a thing, it'll
bring money in without increasing rates and it is just getting people to pay their fair taxes.
Second thing. This is a visitor island, we know that, that's the 800 pound gorilla, but the
question is how much is enough? You know that I am personally opposed to $61/2 million
being given to the Maui Visitors Bureau for parties and promotion. It's too much damn
much. But let's get back to the very basics, what is the capacity? How many can we
handle? I have seen newspaper articles that say that we are at capacity, I have seen
additional articles that say we're going to be experiencing a 13 to 16 percent growth this
year. Now how can we be at capacity and handle the growth? I don't know where we're
going to put them.
MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MR. JOINER: All of these visitors also has an impact on our quality of life, and this is an
important thing. It also has an impact on the quality of the experience for the visitor.
When that quality goes down then the price has to go down. And we are marketing
ourselves as a high-end FIT kind of a destination.
So, we have, our beaches are loaded, our parks are way over-stressed, we have more
visitors coming, we have ships that are coming. They're coming to Lahaina, they're
coming to Kahului. How much is enough? So, what I would like to see happen is we
don't, we don't know the answer to that question but we need to find out. So, I would like
for you to do a major study of either a -- call it whatever you want -- a carrying capacity;
an assets and shortfalls; resources and needs. I don't care what you call it but the idea is,
where are we? Where are we going? And how fast are we getting there? Now the
question ... (inaudible) ...
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MS. KOLLER: Four minutes.
MR. JOINER: ... (inaudible) ... this is not a small amount of money that's going to be needed
for this and the question is then, where does it come from? I say take it from the Maui
Visitors Bureau allotment. Okay. But not, they must not be in control of it. Okay.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Joiner. Members, any questions for Mr. Joiner? Hearing none,
thank you for your testimony.
Next to testify Mr. and Mrs. James and
Dorris Williamson. I'm reading both of your names, because both of your names are
written. Thank you, Jim. And following Jim is Peggy Palakiko.
MR. WILLIAMSON: I should let Doris speak to this because she owns the house.
AUDIENCE: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. WILLIAMSON: My name is Jim Williamson and I'm speaking on behalf of myself and my
wife; and also, I'm a vice-president of the Maui Meadows Homeowners Association. The
subject I'm going to be dealing with tonight is not the overall budget, even though I think
that's going to be coming up, but the subject of property taxes. I noticed it has -- this is
the first time, of course, that I have seen the budget. I noticed that the property tax
amount is over 37 percent of the total budget. I also noticed that the increase from Fiscal
Year 2005 to 2006 is greater than 20 percent. That's exorbitant. On our property, which is
a moderate home but it was built 27 years ago, our property at Maui Meadows, taxes are
proposed to increase 27 percent from last year. This would, this would amount to an
increase of 48 percent over two years. And we are paying reasonable amount of property
tax, it's over $2,000 a year. I mentioned that this is a modest house and that it is 27 years
old; and yet with all of that, the latest assessed value shows the total amount of $900,000
plus.
One thing Tony Fisher said is that, I can't understand how the land values have increased
so much. The land shown, land value shown on the latest assessment value is more than
the total assessed value just two years ago. This thing is broken, we got to fix it. It's not
just simple matter, as the Mayor says, of tweaking here and there, we can fix things up.
No way. This has got a major problem attached to it. You're going to tax people out of
their homes. I think we have a, should have a major discussion on tax reform, not, I was
not opposed, not pleased, I didn't think that was a way, a way to go.
MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MR. WILLIAMSON: But I look at this, these numbers over the last two or three years and we
just increasing to the point that it can't be, we can't continue. I find that most people I
talk to they say, well, you can't change things, it'll just go that way. But we are going to
probably make more of an effort in Maui Meadows Homeowners Association and get
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some action on this as far as we're concerned. And I don't think that we're unique, I think
that the extra property taxes has just gone up out of sight. I, therefore, recommend that
we take a good look, long look at the property tax issue with respect to this budget.
MS. KOLLER: Four minutes.
MR. WILLIAMSON: And I think that we should do this fairly soon, so that some answers are
coming, forthcoming on the, on the next meetings on the budget by the Council. Thank
you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Williamson. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank
you very much for your testimony. Peggy Palakiko followed by Norman Barr.
MS. PALAKIKO: Good evening, County Council. My name is Polly, Peggy Palakiko and I live
in Kihei. I'm here to state how the MEO Small Business Development Program has
helped me and my family to become better educated and better prepared to start a
business in Maui County.
First, I believe MEO's Core 4 course really does improve a small business startup's
chance of success from 20 percent to 80 percent. I know that is a shocking improvement,
but that's what we are told at the course and I believe it to be true. The effort and due
diligence required to successfully complete the five-week course is extensive. The
teacher and MEO staff are knowledgeable, helpful and encourage full use of County,
State and Federal resources and collaboration.
Second, the program is empowering my husband, a native Hawaiian, Daniel Palakiko, an
opportunity to create a viable Maui business, which will assist in the revival of the
Hawaiian culture.
Third, small business is the backbone of our economy and the largest employer of the
people in the United States of America. Thus, all help in terms of mentoring,
networking, business plan, cash-flow development is useful in helping small business
succeed, so we can continue to diversify our island's economic base. I respectfully
request that County Council budget continue to fund MEO Small Business Development
Program. It works, it really does. Respectfully, Peggy Palakiko.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Palakiko. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much. Norman Barr. Mr. Barr will be followed by Dorothy Williams.
MR. BARR: Good evening. My name is Norman Barr. My wife and I have been owner of our,
are owners in the Kamaole Beach Royale Condo Resort. We have owned there now for
28 years. We're part-time residents of Maui, and one of the problems that I would like to
bring to your attention is noise pollution. We are centered in some commercial areas as
well as, of course, other condo projects. And as early as 5:15 in the morning, the garbage
trucks come and start to dump, load their garbage. And the landscapers start their leaf
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blowers at 5:30, quarter to six in the morning. And as I pointed out to the Mayor's office
earlier this week on my telephone conversations with them, this is basically a residential
and resort area, it's not an industrial park and there should be some control at the time
that these people are allowed to start their activities. And as you know, if you have a
garbage truck close to you they're quite, they make a lot of noise and they wake up the
people, everybody in the area.
Also at night, on the other end of the scale, we get the motorcycles who seem to think
that the more noise they make the more people will whatever, pay attention to them. And
so 10:00 or 11:00 o'clock at night you get motorcycles roaring around with no mufflers
and the garbage trucks first thing in the morning. And I think it's time that the County of
Maui got an ordinance for noise bylaw.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Barr. Members, any questions for the testifier?
MR. BARR: Well, I just have-CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry.
MR. BARR: --one other thing I'd like to bring to your attention. It was interesting to hear
Mr. Martin tonight talk about the hazards on the beach. And I see there's been some
activity there lately, but I enjoy swimming on Kamaole I, but I don't enjoy swimming
through the sewage from the, from the boats that dump out in the ocean and very, very
frequently find that brownie, green slime flotsam on the water on Kamaole Beach I. And
that's coming from those tour boats. I'm an old boater, I boated for 20 years and I know
what it looks like. And that, the beaches and, and the water are your two best assets that
you have on Maui and you should be looking after them better. And I've talked to the
lifeguards about it and they say that they've turned it into the-MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MR. BARR: --inspector, and but he says, the inspector comes out and takes tests, but the sludge
is gone by the time he gets there. So, I think it's a very important issue to deal with and it
should be done post haste. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Barr. Members questions? Hearing none, thank you very
much, sir.
MR. BARR: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Dorothy Williams. Ms. Williams will be followed by--
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MS. WILLIAMS: Good evening. I'm Dorothy Williams Edwards. I'm happy you're all here
tonight; I thought we'd have a full room. Do you know what happened yesterday? I
received a card about my new taxes, my new assessments. You all have to do something.
We also have the budget in the paper, budget tops 400 million, big news, bad nightmare.
It's not good news to everybody. My tax assessment is going out of control. Yesterday,
the news was mine went up 22.9 percent in one year. That's a lot of money, we're already
paying high taxes. We need tax reform now; we must have it; we must have a more
efficient government, you can help do this. The Mayor may say he wants this but he
doesn't always get it. You have control of a lot more than he does and we're looking to
you to help keep this in line.
We need more efficiency, our money must be spent better. I didn't get any more money
on my pension, I didn't get much on social security increase. How are they expecting
people to pay these big taxes? It's astronomical and we're looking to you to take care of
it. We've had many meetings with you; we have lots of ideas; now is time for action and
tax reform must happen soon. Make it retroactive. I want everybody to learn that word:
roll back and retroactive, somebody has got to know the difference. Don't do it now and
it starts two years from now. That's not good enough. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Williams. Members, any questions?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Hearing none, thank you Ms. Williams. Next to testify we have Silvia Naiberg,
Molly Flemming and Nicole Shea. And they're all on one sign-up sheet, so come on
down. And in the batter's box we have Leslie Granat.
MS. NAIBERT: Okay. My name is Silvia Naibert. I am the Enlace Hispano Program manager.
And here I am with Molly Flemming and Nicole Shea. They, Nicole is going to talk.
Okay, Nicole. Okay, Molly.
MS. FLEMMING: Hi. My name is Molly Flemming, I teach Spanish at Maui Community
College and I'm also the service learning coordinator. And what we have here tonight is
a lot of the participants in a new service learning class that we've put together, thanks to
Maui Economic Opportunity's Hispanic Link.
Because we've had a professional like Silvia Naibert who's been able to facilitate this,
we've been able to do something really unique and wonderful by bringing together
students of Spanish and members of the Hispanic community that want to work on their
English for mutual tutoring. And this is one of the wonderful things that is coming out of
the money that you're putting into Maui Economic Opportunity's Hispanic Link. I don't
know what we would do without it.
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Me, one of the things that I believe in, in teaching foreign language is that you have to
actually practice the language with the people that speak it. And we are so fortunate now
on Maui to have this population, this Hispanic population, and it would be a terrible
waste to not to be able to get the people together to, to speak it. And so, we've had a
really wonderful beginning of a semester. As you can tell, we have people enthusiastic
enough to actually show up at a meeting. So, I'll let them say more about what they're
getting from it.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. SHEA: Hi, I'm Nicole Shea. I'm a student at MCC and I'm enrolled in the service learning
class that Molly was speaking about. And I just want to testify today about the
importance and all the benefits that I'm receiving out of this class and this money that's
being spent to provide this class ... (CHANGE TAPE) .. .I come from a part-Hispanic
background and I've learned more about my culture and my language through, through
these classes, through speaking, actually speaking the language.
And there's an important part of the community, the Hispanic culture is becoming part of
our community and that's one of the beautiful things about Hawaii is that we all embrace
each other's culture. And through this program I've been able to do that. And I just want
to thank you and ask for your continuing support for the program.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Shea.
MS. NAIBERT: Alright. Thank you very much. This is a closing. It seems the Spanish
population is growing so fast. It's, it's really nice to have students, they willing to learn
the language. Then to be able to provide services from different backgrounds. So, thank
you for all the support that you are giving to Enlace Hispano.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Naibert.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Any questions, Members? Hearing none, thank you very much. Leslie Granat.
Leslie Granat. Oh, hi. Oh. Following Ms. Granat will be Linda Doyle. You folks are
together?
MS. DOYLE: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, ladies. Go ahead.
MS. GRANAT: Good evening, my name is Leslie Granat and I'm here to, I hope that you will
support the Hui and as I support the Hui. I would just like to say in the interest of time
that since a picture is worth 1,000 words, I wanted to tell you that I've been encouraged
for 30 years to, to paint, and never did anything until I moved to Kihei.
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And the Hui really reaches out to everyone with ads in the paper all the time and public
events. And they got me so motivated that I not only started painting, but they have such
extraordinary teachers that are so encouraging that I never painted in my life and I
actually entered Art Maui with this. It was rejected but it went to the Salon de Refuse in
Lahaina and I just finished this painting yesterday, so I hope that you will continue to
help support the Hui because it's changed my life. And full of encouragement, you know,
whether you like these or not I'm proud enough of them to stand up here. So, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any questions? Hearing none, Ms. Doyle, please.
MS. DOYLE: Hi. My name is Linda Doyle, and I wanted to just speak a little about what I feel
the value of Hui Noeau is to the community of Maui. It has been there for many years, I
believe, since 1934, I believe, trying to offer classes. Right now, probably approximately
5,000 people of the community of Maui go through programs at Hui Noeau and the value
of.. .I believe one of the, you know, a couple of the, the missions or the purpose of the
Hui is to nurture the artists on the island of Maui.
There's many, many artists that are drawn here. We try to provide, well, we do provide
classes, workshops, educational opportunities for them to grow. But we also feel that
giving the community of Maui the opportunity to learn creative expression through the
visual arts at the Hui in particular. And we reach out to the community in many ways,
many young people have programs there.
The County of Maui has funded for about 12 years one of, I think, one of our finest
outreach programs for youth at risk. We partner with Alternative Learning Centers and
the kids get classes there for free. It's been a wonderful opportunity.
We also just to come down into the Kihei community are beginning to have classes down
here. We've been having classes at the Keolahou Congregational Hawaiian Church at
North Kihei. And they are growing, they're going and I think the people are really
enjoying them.
Our goal is to try to get classes in Lahaina and Kahului, Hana, Lanai and Molokai, also,
or bring them here, which is really trying to reach out to the entire County, but we are
out-branched here in Kihei. And I thank you all very much for the help you have been
and I hope you consider the Hui.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Doyle. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much. Denise Windsong. Are you Ms. Windsong?
MS. WINDSONG: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: I'm forcing you because I think you didn't want to testify, but we're going to
force you--
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MS. WIND SONG: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --to testify.
MS. WIND SONG: Yes. I am Denise Windsong and I wanted to thank the Council Members for
supporting the Hui Noeau. I run the life drawing class, it's held on Wednesday there and
it's an open studio. I've been running the class for about a year and a half, going on two.
And it's, the studio is, the program itself is at, it invites everyone to come, so there's
people who've never drawn before, there's, so they're taking their first baby steps into the
art world. And then there's people like myself who've had training and experience and
have a passion for drawing. And then there's professionals, there's people who are
graphic designers, illustrators, professional artists. And so we all join together on a
Wednesday, and it's, it's wonderful that we all learn from each other. And what we do is
we encourage and support everyone to design their own program of self-study and then to
also utilize some of the other programs that the, that the Hui has to offer.
And on a personal note, it's been a second lease on life for me. It's the highlight of my
week is to head up to the Hui and spend the day there. And it's encouraging me and it's
inspiring me to teach, and just this last month I was invited to the Maui High School and
I spent the day there teaching 80 students classes on just drawings. And I really enjoyed
it and I just, again, want to thank you for your support. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Windsong. Members, questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much. Next to testify Marion Dozier, and she'll be followed by Jerrie Sheppard.
MS. DOZIER: Good evening, Council Members. For the first time, I don't have my testimony
printed to hand out to you. It's because my computer and printer is getting old and
cantankerous just like its owner. And I intend to be brief, anyway.
This, today most of you had the privilege of joining us in Lahaina at the Honolua Seniors'
35 th Anniversary. We have seniors club all over the island. We have approximately
45 to 48 under the umbrella of MEO. I know you've heard MEO a number of times
tonight, but MEO is an organization that covers, I think, from the cradle to the grave.
Today's meeting at Honolua was possible because MEO has a ribbon, it's the ribbon that
ties together all of the senior organizations and that is the transportation. I understand
there is going to be or has been a cutback in the transportation available to the seniors.
Some of us are still driving, many seniors no longer drive. And many of them their only
link is the transportation offered by MEO to the senior organizations and visiting each
other's organization.
So, I know you guys have an awful lot of work to do; you've got an awful lot of fixing up
to do; you've got a lot of planning to do. But you know there's the saying, if it ain't
broke, don't fix it. Leave MEO alone. Mahalo.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Dozier. Members, questions for Ms. Dozier? Hearing none,
thank you very -- oh I'm sorry. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to know if you had spoken to Gladys or Sandy,
because they are trying to work on that problem. It's not that the funding was cut back
but have you visited with them yet?
MS. DOZIER: I just found out that it was being cut back, that it's not possible to visit the other
clubs. We do get two free trips a year and when there's organizations like today when all
of the clubs could have been there, there was no transportation available.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah and, and I think if you can visit with them they'll
clarify that it's not what you think it is, it's something else, it's a regulatory thing. So
anyway ...
MS. DOZIER: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I can visit with you later. Thank you very much.
MS. DOZIER: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any questions for Ms. Dozier, Members? Hearing none, thank you very much.
Jerrie Sheppard and Ms. Sheppard will be followed by -- thank you -- Amity Mason.
Thank you.
MS. SHEPPARD: Good evening, Chairman Kane, ladies and gentlemen of the Council. I'm
Deputy Prosecutor Jerrie Sheppard and I'm here tonight on behalf of a bunch of
volunteers from the Kalama Park Action Team, KPAT. This group was formed last June,
as simply a call to arms for the citizenry here in Maui, especially in the Kihei area to take
back Kalama Park.
We had a fatal stabbing last year in Kalama Park, we had a shooting at a police picnic in
Kalama Park. We've had numerous drug arrests, we've had numerous drug use that's not
resulted in arrest. We've had graffiti, we've had underage drinking, we've had a lot of
problems in Kalama Park. And last year the citizens said, enough already. And with the
Community Prosecution Program we were able to form a citizens' group and start
addressing some of the crime in Kalama Park.
We've done a number of projects, all out of our own pockets, it's all been volunteers and
donations from businesses. We haven't asked the County government for a dime and
now we are asking the County government for the dime. The Kalama Park Action Team
has as its mission to develop and maintain Kalama Park as a user friendly, safe, beautiful
place to bring your families, to bring our visitors, to actually be the gem of Maui County.
And what we're asking for now is a trail, a trail, a perimeter trail around the park, so
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people can get off the street and get into the park, easily, accessibly, with lighting, so you
can go out there after dusk and not be afraid of getting jumped.
We're doing a lot to keep the brush down, we're doing a lot to pick the trash up, we're
doing a lot to get the facilities useful for the kids. The lights should be back on at the
skate park tonight or tomorrow night. The skateboard park was refurbished all by
volunteer effort, and now we're asking the County to please help us do a little bit more in
that park. Get us a trail.
The budget input this year has money in the Park's budget for the design of a perimeter
trail, which would include lighting; information kiosks, benches, so you could sit down
and enjoy the sunset, you don't just have to sit on the ground; exercise workout stations,
so people can come in and let their kids play ball or practice or whatever they do and the
adults can go ahead and do a circumference of the park and do a workout circuit or
something like that.
The trail we envision would be smooth enough for wheelchairs, strollers, walkers, people
who can't maybe move as easily over our rougher terrain like the park is now. So, we're
asking for that kind of support. I think there's a $50,000 budget item to design it this
year, and we're hoping that the design will come through and then in the future year, we'll
go ahead and get the money to build it and that park will maintain the safer image that
we're giving it right now. So now, we're asking for the County's help. Any questions?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Sheppard.
Ms. Sheppard.

Members, questions?

Hang on one second,

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Jerrie, just to let you know in the Fiscal Year 2006
budget the Mayor had put in a line item of $450,000.
MS. SHEPPARD: Oh to even construct it? Well, you can't improve it all, that's okay. I thought
it was 50,000 for design this year and then funding to, to actually construct it in out years.
But if, if they can do it, the sooner the better, because what we've done is we've started
the change and the more we do, the more we bring use into that park into every corner of
that park in a legitimate fashion the more it will discourage illegitimate use of that park
area.
I've given to you a layout of the trail and a handout that we use for Whale Day, just to get
some public input. I've also given you our meeting schedule for Kalama Park Action
Team, so you're all invited, circle a date and come on down. And those are suitable for
putting on your refrigerator door, because they're real pretty so you don't forget about us.
And I've also given you the invitation to come out with the citizens' patrol that actually
goes out in the evenings and walks Kalama Park and helps the police by being the eyes
and ears for the Police Department, so they can zero in on any bad conduct.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Sheppard, and just to provide clarity, the 450,000 that
Councilmember Pontanilla is referencing is for Kalama Park improvements which the
trail is part of that package, so-MS. SHEPPARD: Okay. The trail was part of that.
CHAIR KANE: --yeah, so it is going to be phased. It looks like the recommendation is gonna
be a phased-in project. And we'll have an opportunity to talk with the Parks Department
when we have our meetings in the future.
MS. SHEPPARD: Good. If you have any questions for me you know how to find me. Thank
you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Amity Mason.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Amity Mason. Okay. I'll keep that on the side for now. Alan Johns and
Mr. Johns will be followed by Kelly-MR. FLIEAR, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Fliear.
CHAIR KANE: --Fliear. Thank you very much.
MR. JOHNS: Good evening, Council. Thanks for coming down to Kihei tonight, I appreciate
that. My name is Alan Johns, I'm the president of Kihei Little League and appropriately
following Jerrie Sheppard here. I've been the president of Kihei Little League for three
years now, and I've been a resident of South Maui since 1978. My wife grew up here,
she actually attended the old Kihei Elementary School down by Sudas and graduated
from Baldwin and she doesn't want me to say when, but anyway. We've lived in South
Maui for a long, long time and we've seen it grow and we really love it. Nonetheless, our
Kihei Little League ... I'm here to really, after looking at the Capital Improvement
budget and that small little pie thing for the South Maui area I was a little concerned and
I, I'm here to ask some questions, because I service about 300, well about 325 families
that I think Kihei Little League affects in a very, very positive fashion.
Like Jerrie Sheppard, we call Kalama Park home, and as our home we share that
graciously with men's softball, women's, men's, kids' soccer, football, ultimate Frisbee,
et cetera, et cetera. I cannot think of a more higher used athletic facility on this island.
We have four fields for baseball on a field to handle 26 teams, and we are constantly
shuffling, you know, back and forth. One of the fields on the ocean side was set up by
somebody that doesn't, probably never had played baseball before, because it's unfit for
play, you cannot, you need to have a north-south pitcher's mound. Otherwise, in the
afternoon the batter can, is looking right into the sun. So, nobody will let us play there
for a safety reason we'd like to have the backstop switched. It's beautiful ocean front

- 31 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council ,Of the C,Ounty ,Of Maui

March 17, 2005 (Kihei)

property by the way too, if we don't want to use it, you know, for parks, but we can't even
use that field and it's really a shame, just for safety reasons.
Anyway, the parents constantly are asking me, what is being done here on the island?
We've heard for a couple years now about the regional park up here for development.
I've been told that, you know, the plan, the master plan was to make Kalama Park readily
exclusive when this was all said and done. This would be a park for the adults, for the
big kids, for football, for soccer, for basketball, for all kinds of things.
We were hoping to see this as part of the budget this year on the capital improvements.
And we're scratching along trying to find it and we didn't see it. So there's about
300 angry parents that I deal with on a nightly basis probably that are asking me some
questions and that's why I'm here.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, Mr. Adams, excuse me, Johns. I said John Adams.
Members, questions? Hearing none, Mr. Johns, thank you very much.
MR. JOHNS: Is, what is the plan for the regional park? Is there an ETA for that?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: We don't know.
CHAIR KANE: We have it listed ...
MR. JOHNS: South Maui Regional Park.
CHAIR KANE: The proposal in the Mayor's proposed budget it's within the six-year Capital
Improvement Program, and it's specifically listed for between Fiscal Year 2007 and 11
and there's, the intention looks like a $14 million bond.
MR. JOHNS: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: So, it's not in this current year budget, but it is planned for the near future
within the next five years.
MR. JOHNS: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, sir. Kelly Fliear followed by Joan Martin.
MR. FLIEAR: Aloha. I want to thank you all for coming to Kihei tonight. My name is
Kelly Fliear. I have lived on Maui for 26 years, and the past 17 years, I've lived in Kihei.
I'm a homeowner and board member of Piilani Village I. I'm also vice-president of the
Board of Kihei Little League. But I'm here testifying on my own tonight for a couple of
reasons.

- 32-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 17, 2005 (Kihei)

When I looked at the pie chart, you know, I didn't know whether to laugh, 'cause I
thought maybe it was kind of a joke, or to cry. Because if you look at the little small
sliver of pie that's set aside for the Kihei-Makena in the CIP capital improvements you'll
see that it's almost the smallest sliver of pie in the pie chart here.
What's odd to me is that Kihei is approaching 25,000 population now and continues to
grow at a very rapid rate. You know I'm not a political science major, I'm just, my
common sense tells me that, that's a, that's a pretty small piece. And as you as Council
Members may want to consider that as you address the Mayor's budget and, and really
take a look at that. I mean when you take a look at the population, the number of
taxpayers here, is this all we're going to get back for a town of 25,000? That's my
question. It seems pretty small, it looks like four or five scoops of rice here for
Wailuku-Kahului, couple scoops for West Maui, maybe about a half scoop for Kihei. So
that's my question there on that.
As far as capital improvements that are needed, you know, the regional park I think we
first heard about this three years ago or so, and now we're hearing that maybe in five
more years it might be done from, you know, through the phasing of it. I guess an
example that I'd like to put up, you know, the people from Hope Chapel somehow figured
this thing out to get their church built in about a year on that same piece of parcel that
we're waiting desperately, we're, we're thirsting and hungering for this park. We've got a
town here that really has relatively no heartbeat. When I say that, Michelle, you're new
here, you know. I'm leaning on you and pushing you here.
We're probably the largest town in America that doesn't have a high school, a dedicated
public high school. I don't know that for a fact, but I'm willing to take the gamble and
say at 25,000 people I've never heard of a town that large without a public high school.
Now am I venturing into State DOE territory that's not part of the Council's jurisdiction?
Maybe. But when I read the paper and see that $2 million is being, is put into the
Mayor's budget to support MCC-MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MR. FLIEAR: --I'm going, well why, if we're going to, if we are going to support the State
Department of Education let's throw the $2 million and get a high school here. Kids that
ride a bus 45 minutes to get to school at Baldwin and Maui High, 35 minutes coming
back, they want to play baseball; they want to play football; they want to be a
cheerleader; they want to do drama. Well, probably can't, mom and dad are working two
jobs, they gotta catch the bus and get home.
We see it every day down at the little league park, once the kids hit 12 years old, about
85 percent of little leaguers don't play baseball anymore, they stop playing. So, what do
they do when they get home to Kihei? They head down to the Kalama Park and they
want to find out where the action is. You know Kalama park at nine o'clock, ten o'clock
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at night turns from little league, it turns into the hood, unfortunately. I've seen it, we've
seen it happen.
MS. KOLLER: Four minutes.
MR. FLIEAR: So, I just ask you to take a look at this pie chart as you examine your budget and
please consider some additional capital expenditures primarily towards that regional park
or perhaps towards the building of a high school here, which these kids here deserve.
That's all, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Coach. Members. any questions?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Hearing none, thank you very much. Joan Martin followed by Patience Gaia.
MS. MARTIN: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Joan Martin and I'm here this
evening on behalf of Annie Quitan, she cannot be here this evening, she's a senior and
she's at home due to the cold weather. So, I'd like to read the letter that she wrote. Dear
Councilmember Kane: Unfortunately, I cannot be with you for your budget meeting in
Kihei tonight. Thank you for coming to Kihei and receiving our suggestions regarding
the Maui County budget. On behalf of the 40 members of the Kihei Pili Aloha Senior
Club, I wish to express our support for the continued funding of the MEO transportation
programs for seniors, persons with disabilities, dialysis and youth. These programs of
specialized transportation are serving the community well, and we ask that you continue
your support of them in the coming budget.
I also wish to mention that MEO continues to provide excellent services in the areas of
Head Start; infant and toddler care; immigrant acculturation to Enlace Hispano; attention
to at-risk youth through the Youth Bank Program; and support of low-income
entrepreneurs with the MEO Business Development Program. I ask that you also
continue these important services to our community.
In closing, I want to underscore our support for MEO transportation. For many of us this
service is critical to our quality of life. We request that the Council support these
services. Sincerely, Annie Quitan, President Kihei Pili Aloha Senior Club. And one final
thing that Annie asked me to ask you ... she wanted to tell you that MEO will, she
wants, excuse me, she asked me to tell you that she hopes MEO will soon be allowed to
take seniors on trips and visits again, especially to club activities. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Martin. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you.
Next to testify is Patience Gaia, and following Ms. Gaia is Michael Trotto.
MS. GAIA: Council Members, thank you for your time this evening. My name is Patience Gaia
and I'm here both as a resident of Kihei and a member, an active member of the Kalama
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Park Action Team. I live, if I was a good throw, ball thrower, within throwing distance
of Kalama Park. I can see the lights, the sports field lights in my, through my bedroom
window and my living room window. So, this park is critically important to me and to
my grandchildren who are the main people I go there with beside my Kalama Park
patrols.
I want to ask for your support when it comes to time to vote on the budget to support the
improvements in Kalama Park and most especially the Whale Trail. I, in particular, have
played an important part of that trail effort, I've worked to walk the trail to talk with
national park representatives to design the park to, the trail, rather, to look at where it
could be best, where it would best serve the community members and the users.
The proposed Whale Trail -- we're calling it "Whale Trail" because of the whale statue,
we want to honor that and it's nice, rhymes nice, call it the Whale Trail -- would be
approximately one mile long, well-lit, wheelchair accessible and provide a link to the
South Maui heritage corridor. Our design suggestions, as Jerrie Sheppard mentioned a
while ago, include an exercise stations and information kiosks.
We in the Kalama Park Action Team believe this to be an essential component of a
long-term solution to the safety and to keeping Kalama Park safe for both our community
now and for future generations. Kalama Park Action Team is active now and we're really
proud of our activities and we feel like we've had a good impact on the park. However,
it's not something we can really guarantee continued participation in. So, we're looking
for long-term solutions here. The trail accomplishes this long-term solution by increasing
regular and legitimate use of the park by a broad spectrum of users: for families, walkers,
runners, youth, seniors, residents as well as visitors.
Second, the Whale Trail would broaden use to nearly all areas of the park, including
remote areas that are currently easy targets for areas of illegal activity. Three, as a result
make it Kalama Park, this would make Kalama Park feel safer, which has the effect of
encouraging legitimate use and discouraging illegal activities. Often perception becomes
reality, especially in parks and public places. If the perception of Kalama Park is that it is
safe then more people will use it; if the perception is that it is ridden with crime and that
it is dangerous then legitimate use drops making way for increased crime and vandalism.
It feeds on itself, it's a cycle.
The effect of this trail will greatly multiply the current impact on reducing crime that is
being accomplished by the Kalama Park Action Team patrols. By putting a walking trail,
the Whale Trail in Kalama Park you will provide a safe place for parents to take walks
with their children and for residents and visitors to get exercise at a safe distance from the
South Kihei Road, away from traffic and along our beautiful coast line. You will also
keep safe for generations to come a precious community resource, as the other gentlemen
earlier spoke very well about. The most central recreational area in South Maui, already
equipped with a playground, numerous ball fields, pavilions, and picnic areas. We hope
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you will give your full support to this essential community effort, and we appreciate you
coming out and listening and taking our feedback.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Gaia. Members, questions? Hearing-MS. GAIA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --none, thank you very much. Next is Michael Trotto and then, Members, we're
going to just take a very brief recess, five minutes and then we'll reconvene. Thank you.
Mr. Trotto.
MR. TROTTO: Good evening, Council Members. I was going to talk about a couple of things
tonight, but you answered a lot of the questions. Primarily, I'm for KPAT, I'm a member
of KPAT, I was there from the inception. I've been working with Jerrie Sheppard and,
and a marvelous group of people, just wonderful volunteers who've come out. And if you
saw Kalama Park six months ago and you saw it today, it's day and night, just day and
night. And it's just from the, these marvelous people that have just come out and made
this effort.
I, too, live maybe a half a block from Kalama Park, it's my neighborhood park, it's a place

that I, I've known for the last 27,28 years. I've seen it go through a lot of changes, but
these are wonderful changes that we're, we're doing down there. And I was really happy
when you answered the question about the money, the 450 for the improvements. And
it's going to go a long way, so I'm, I thank you for that, I thank, thank you for getting it in
the budget and I, and I, encourage you to kind of shepherd that through. Because I know
it'll be talked about some more as we go along the process to keep it, you know,
foremost, because we've really started something here.
If you, if you come on a KPAT patrol, if you just signed up and came one night and just
walked the park one night and see what the situation is, it would really open your eyes.
And, and we have done a good job and we're going to continue to do that and the trail, the
Whale Trail is going to be a major asset to this park. And it's going to return dividends
you cannot even believe. So, I thank you for that, I want you to keep that in your, in
your, foremost in your mind when you go through this process, and let's keep this thing
going. It's really off to a great start. And then I'm just going to end tonight by saying,
yes ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... since they are, there is a problem.

I'm dismayed about the Administration's, how I looked at ... it doesn't need to be fixed,
it doesn't need to be touched. It does. You heard the testimony tonight. We need to do
something about this, 23 percent increases, this just can't, can't go on. So I don't want to
belabor that, but you know I'm, that's another hat I wear for COMET and for, for just
citizens that are being taxed a little bit too much. These increases are too much. So, we,
we're going to be talking more about that. And I thank you for coming to Kihei, I
appreciate your efforts and thank you and, and god bless you all. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank, you Mr. Trotto. Members ,any questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much. We're going to take just a very brief recess, Members, like five minutes, and
so, we'll come back, let's say at, right before 8:45 and in the box we'll have
Mr. George Rixey. Okay. So, we're going to be in recess until about 8:40, excuse me
7:40, well right before 7:45. Thank you. .. (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

7:36 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:42 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). . . Budget and Finance meeting. Next to testify we have
Mr. George Rixey, and Mr. Rixey will be followed by Cecelia Camp.
MR. RIXEY: Aloha. Thank you. I have several things to talk about tonight real quick. All of
them are quality-of-life issues for our community. The first one is parks. We definitely,
definitely need to fund the maintenance for the parks. We need some quality-inspired
people that want to maintain the parks. No question about it. You've heard a lot of
testimony about Kalama Park, it's made a huge difference, but it's all volunteer and we
need assistance from the County on that, especially with clearing out brush in a lot of the
wooded area. That's where a lot of the crime is, a lot of the drugs, a lot of the homeless.
So, big time we need that and facilities of course.
I mean, we all know from that assessment for resources for Kihei, I mean, we're way,
way under the limit for our facilities, and we're not even taking into account the effect
that the tourism has on Kihei. I mean, we're under just for our own residents, so I mean
we're way, way under. And you know when you go and you look at the pie chart and
Kihei in the next six years, you know, that small sliver, I mean, it's, doesn't really make a
whole lot of sense. So, we gotta really look at that.
Another issue is roundabouts, roundabouts for Kihei. I mean that's, to me, that's and to
our community, that's the number one thing we can do to decrease the traffic congestion;
increase pedestrian safety; and provide long-term, low-maintenance for intersections; and
lastly but not leastly, create an identity and a sense of place for Kihei. I mean, our major
intersections on the North-South Collector Road, South Kihei Road is roundabouts. I
mean it would just totally transform the effect of our community. So, we definitely need
to get this one in here right across the street over the intersection across from Safeway.
North-South Collector Road: we need to get a North-South Collector Road, it's on the
budget, there's a lot of money there. It's all bonded but it's not happening, it's been on
that budget for a long time, we still don't have it. And what it really speaks to, I think, is
the issue of how much funding and service is available in our own Department of
Transportation and our own Planning Departments. I mean, they're, they're not a big
enough to operate to handle the need. And also if you look, you know, again, if you look
at the chart and the percentage of operating expenses -- 2 percent for planning out of all
the operating expenses, 4 percent about for transportation. I mean those, those are major
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items on our operating, I would think, for the County. So, we gotta take a look at that.
You know, I mean, just off-hand, if you take a look at operating expenses-MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MR. RIXEY: --versus capital improvements, we're like at 80 percent operating expenses,
20 percent capital improvements. So, we need to think about that, how we can affect
that.
And then police, we've had a lot of talk with the police, local police officers in the
community, with the churches and neighborhoods, and we need to get police officers on
bicycles in the community. One or two in some key, key, key areas, that would be the
best thing for the homeless problem and crime problem and drug problem in the parks.
So, and there's people in the community, myself included, I mean, well, I'll pay for the
bikes. We just need the officers on them.
And then lastly, you know, well I guess, we could say it again but basically just the
accountability. I mean, if we go back and we look at last ten years of all the assessments
that have come through for park assessments, especially for Kihei, you know, we need to
know where, where is that? You know, where has it gone? I know-MS. KOLLER: Four minutes.
MR. RIXEY: --I'm not sure it's really, actually been spent for improvements in Kihei. So, we
really need to follow that up and check on that sort of thing. Okay. I think that's about it.
Alright.
CHAIR KANE:
Thank you, Mr. Rixey.
Member Tavares.

Members, any questions for Mr. Rixey?

MR. RIXEY : Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Hi, George.
MR. RIXEY: Yeah. Hi, Charmaine
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Thank you for being here, George. Just a couple of
things to clear up. The Highways Division is still in Public Works, it's not in the
Department of Transportation.
MR. RIXEY: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. So, they're, they're still responsible for like the
North-South Collector Road and all of that. The other thing is a park assessment, by law,
has to be spent in the community plan region. So, that part as the budgets go through and
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projects get assigned to park assessment it has to be in that community. So, you can look
through the past budgets and see what has been accounted for, for improvements in the
Kihei area. But we'll be looking at that very closely this year, too, with all of the CIP.
But thank you.
MR. RIXEY: Okay. Yeah. Thank you very much. Good evening.
CHAIR KANE: Any other questions for Mr. Rixey? I had a note that I was going to hand to
you but I'll just read it. There was a budget amendment that was done back in Fiscal
Year '04, so a little over, almost two years ago, specific to roundabouts and the money
wasn't spent.
MR. RIXEY: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: So.
MR. RIXEY: Same with the North-South Collector Road and other things, too, yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
MR. RIXEY: So, we gotta, that's why I say we gotta get that pushed to get the effort to get it
gomg. We need that and I think in the departments is where we gotta get it going.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. RIXEY: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Rixey. Next to testify, Cecelia Camp. Thank you, Ms. Camp,
for waiting.
MS. CAMP: Well, thank you for. .. (inaudible) ...
CHAIR KANE: And following Ms. Camp is Gene Zarro.
MS. CAMP: Thank you very much. I'm here to testify about the support for the MEDB for the
technology field, monies that are spent in that area, particularly about the EAST Program.
I have four children and over the last five years, one of them, my oldest son, Cyrus took
EAST as an elective but went on to do an internship at D.H. Manoa with what he had
learned and expanded on it. In fact, now he's using, he's in a job, it's called PEACE SAT,
it's the Pan-Pacific Education and Communication Experiment by Satellite on the campus
at D.H. Manoa. And by using the skills that he initially started learning through EAST,
he was able to expound on it and he has a job now that's helping put him through college
and it's also in the technology field.
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I have a daughter, Summer, who also attended Kihei High and through EAST it's a whole
entirely EAST school, it's great on technology. She went to a conference in '02 and won
first price, and she used her skills that were developed in the EAST Program. Also, as
she was a Rotary exchange student in Japan and as she was a student at MCC and as she
is now at the University of Kobe in Japan through the Study of Broad Center through
U.H. Manoa. It just builds and builds on itself and it's just been wonderful.
I have a son, Clark, who's a sophomore in high school, and he is also at Kihei High
learning the technology. And he went to an AutoCAD Program that was just fantastic,
and he's being able to use that in his studies now. And his, I can see his career being
enhanced with the technology, also.
And I have a son, Colin, who's currently in the Maui Virtual Academy, and that's an
online school with Kihei High. And as you can imagine, he also has access to the
technology that's at the high school that he can learn whether it's Flash or the AutoCAD
Programs or Soft Image or whatever is available there. And I just really appreciate all the
support that the County has given towards the EAST Program, it's just really been
fantastic, it's benefited all four of my children. And of course all my children have been
using computers since they were preschool for the past 20 years. And it's just really
important and no matter what career or job you go for you really have to have technology
skills. And I really appreciate any support you give in that area and I hope that continues.
There's a career day, tech day where they take the kids to Lipoa Park and then also up on
Haleakala and two of my children have done that and my third one is scheduled to go.
And that's very encouraging to them, also, and I appreciate that.
MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MS. CAMP: And I would also like to say that the State has, Kihei High has been here for four
years and they are struggling financially. And they don't have a facility and I think it
would be a wonderful idea if the County could build a building and maybe it could be a
multipurpose building and lease it back to the high school or something. We're not on the
books for a high school here, on the State books, for decades. We get on, we get off, we
get on, we get off. But as a previous person testified it's really a travesty that a
community of 25,000 doesn't have a high school. There's no such thing on the mainland
and it's, it's really sad that we don't have a high school, high school building and that I
would like more support of Kihei High and what they do. Because they really, they're
training the children for-MS. KOLLER: Four minutes.
MS. CAMP: __ 21 st Century jobs. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Camp. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much. Next to testify Mr. Gene Zarro followed by Judith Michaels.
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MR. ZARRO: Aloha, everybody. Welcome to Kihei, thank you all for coming. You know, I
just want to say thanks for that superferry vote, you guys all showed some courage and I
really appreciate that. As important as it is to have that economic stimulus it's also
important to make sure we figure it all out first. So, thanks for that guys and ladies.
I'm here in support of Maui Economic Development Board and their educational
programs. As you just heard the previous speaker, your support as a, as a County
Council and seeing that the education monies are channeled to MEDB and they in turn
channel them out to the schools.
So, I gotta tell you something, because right now they're all coming back from Arkansas,
the EAST conference. Okay. As we speak they're in the airport, a whole bunch of them,
five schools, maybe six. You know there's a wall in Little Rock and it has a bunch of
awards from Maui kids, you guys remember that: Lahainaluna, best in show; Maui High
School, best in show; Kihei, first place, first year. And this year, they changed the
format, I think they changed it because Maui was kicking butt over there. So, I think they
had to change the rules. But it didn't work, three schools got superior school awards:
King K, Maui High and Kihei. So, there's three more plaques on some wall in Little
Rock.
So, two things: thank you for that support and thank you for trusting MEDB, who is a
great organization that somehow is able to leverage that support into other things. And I
think that's what's most important to you: one that they get the job done, and two that
they manage to get more bang for the buck than you could imagine. When the AutoCAD
Program came, how they got the AutoCAD Program here, I don't know. But it was a
leveraging of the EAST conference and Women in Technology and all of these other
technology programs that attracted the owners of the AutoCAD company. And now
there's a 125 free licenses for AutoCAD, 25 in each high school on this island and
training. They brought weekends of training and kids are doing AutoCAD all over Maui
right now and they're teaching each other. And that's a really good thing.
My daughter, seventh grade, took part in the Introduce a Girl to Technology, Introduce a
Girl to Engineering Program, and Lokelani submitted about 22 kids to the Maui County
Science and Engineering Fair and 14 of, 19 of them got honorable mention, one of them
won a spot and 14 of them were girls and they're all going to Honolulu for the State
conference. And that's part of what you guys are doing, I just think it's important that you
know what you're doing-MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MR. ZARRO: --the money is being well spent, and we really appreciate it. So, your continued
support is really needed. I personally know that it's the State that's supposed to provide
the high school. So, I'm not going to ask you for a high school because that's the State's
kuleana. But maybe you guys could lend your voice in support of that, because we're
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getting to the point where there's a resolution in the Senate right now, and it's asking for
the, you know, the money to be released $51/2 million for site selection. And part of the
resolution says that this site, when it's decided, will contain a lO-acre parcel to house the
charter school. And that's really important because it'll put all the kids in one area, so
they could actually have true choice and they'll be able to create the economy of scale
that you need for football teams and big bands. So, the small school is an added
disadvantage, so when that comes through your voices are strong and powerful-MS. KOLLER: Four minutes.
MR. ZARRO: --if you could lend it, that would be great. Thank you guys and appreciate
everything you're doing.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Zarro. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much. Next to testify is Judith Michaels. Ms. Michaels, following Ms. Michaels
will be David Frazier.
MS. MICHAELS: Well, for one thing I know if you testify late enough there's just the group of
us here, very intimate isn't it. First of all, I want to thank all of you for corning, I know
how hard you all work and I really appreciate it. I would like, though, in the future years
if there's any possibility at all, that we might have a few days after the budget is released
to have an opportunity to look at it. I'm President of the Kihei Community Association
and I did pick up a copy of the budget today. We'd like to sit down with our board and
have an opportunity to look at the budget and really look at the numbers and corne and
talk to you in an intelligent manner about the things that we really feel are important to
our community. And I, actually, like you, and like many of us are very busy with other
things and other responsibilities, and I have not had much opportunity.
I've got my three members of my board including George Rixey back in the back of the
room going through the budget like little mad men trying to figure out, you know, the
numbers that we need to talk to you about tonight. There are many things. If I had the
time to go through all the numbers, but I just want to touch on a few of the things that,
that, that we are concerned about. Weare very concerned about the poor condition of our
parks. You know, South Maui has, they did a capacity study last year, last spring, the
Planning Department. And our parks I think at that time we are -- George, correct
me -- over 200,000 acres, 200 acres short? Full capacity, anyway, and what?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 120 acres.
MS. MICHAELS: 120 acres at that time, but that didn't even take into consideration our visitors
industry. Our parks are highly utilized and they're being overused every day, and they're,
and the, they're just in extremely poor condition. We need a lot more money to bring
these parks up to a really decent level. We have a lot of our community members who
have volunteered to do work in the parks, but we need help from the County.
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I live in this area, I live in Makena, I have a lot of friends that live in Wailea. I know
how much taxes they pay, I know that we bring in a large percentage of the money to
help run the County. And I think that Wailea may not need it because they pretty much
take care of their little community, but Kihei needs it desperately and so does Makena.
Also, we need more police officers, we're also lacking in, we are also understaffed in
police officers and this has led to a lack of programs to address a problem in our
community that I think that is probably the number one problem and that's the use of
drugs and specifically ice. Right now, my board, we are working on, on looking at the
problem of drugs and crimes in our neighborhood and trying to come up with some
solutions. And we need to have policemen to work with us, and I was just reading the
goal of the Police Department to work with our community to address the, work with the
community in programs to address drug and crime.
MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MS. MICHAELS: We do not have that in our community, we do not have a program where we
have the Police Department working with our community. We have drug houses and on
some of the blocks, and our community members tell us that they cannot get them closed
down.
We do, I appreciate that the Kalama Park is gonna receive a little attention. But that
doesn't address the regional park, the regional park money that, there is a bonding issue,
and I do not think that, that is real money for the regional park. I also know that you
don't have anything to do with the school, but anything that you can think of, Kihei
desperately needs a high school. So, if you can be creative, I'm talking with the Mayor,
you know, there's some big developments about to go in right now. We've had a
developer that was kind enough to come in and help us build a elementary school. My
suggestion is there's some big things on board like Wailea 670, you know, they want to
help us. Let's see how much they can help us with the high school. I think we have to
be-MS. KOLLER: Four minutes.
MS. MICHAELS: --creative in this area, and again thank you very much for coming and
listening to us. Thanks.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Michaels.
MS. MICHAELS: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any questions? Ms. Anderson, question?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Judith, for coming. You said that, that police
officers have told you they can't close down some drug houses--
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MS. MICHAELS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --known drug houses?
MS. MICHAELS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Can you say why they, have they explained why?
MS. MICHAELS: I think a little of it they say is because some of the police policy, but they've
actually, we actually have police officers in our community who've taken photographs,
they've documented drug houses. They take this information back to their superiors, and
they are not given the support to close down these drug houses. What we're looking at as
KCA, the Kihei Community Association Board is looking at now is a symposium in the
next two or three months to really try to get a program working with the Police
Department and something like a neighborhood watch where we can get some
commitment from the Police Department and not just the policemen, 'cause I think some
of our local policemen were, really, really feel that they're not being supported as well.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But you, they have not given you any reasoning why they
don't get support from their superiors?
MS. MICHAELS: They have said to us that they have been told that the laws that are in place
don't allow them to do some of the things that they need to do to close down these drug
houses. So, if you want to get specific, I can set up a meeting with you with some of
these police officers in our neighborhood and have them tell you their problems, because
I think it'd be real valuable for, for you to hear them.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you, Judith.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions?
MS. MICHAELS: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: And I wanted to note, and you are the president of the Kihei Community
Association?
MS. MICHAELS: Yes, I am.
CHAIR KANE: And I, I don't want you folks to feel like you had to give us your, your, all of
your testimony tonight. We're going to be meeting for the next, you know, all the way
until May 23-MS. MICHAELS: Right.
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CHAIR KANE: --before the final, the official reading is taken. So, please we, we encourage
you to continue to provide us with written testimony. If you're in Wailuku at the County
building, we're going to be meeting virtually every day for the next, you know, couple of
months almost.
MS. MICHAELS: Good.
CHAIR KANE: So, please don't feel like tonight was your night to do it and after this you can't.
MS. MICHAELS: Thank you very much for that.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
MS. MICHAELS: We will be there.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. MICHAELS: We'll be there with written testimony, and we'll be asking for things, so.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. MICHAELS: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We have Mr. David Frazier.
MR. FRAZIER: Good evening, Council Members. My name is David Frazier, I appreciate, late
hour so I'll try to be brief. But I did want to state that I am a six-year resident of South
Kihei, I'm also the general manage of the Maui Coast Hotel and a member of the KCA
community association, and also I've participated in the Kalama Park Action Team. And
I just wanted to echo a couple of things that were said here earlier this evening.
One was in a brief, brief look at the budget and the comments the gentleman made about
the pie chart for the capitalized improvements for Kihei. I have in particular a couple of
concerns, and one is my observation of the parks, and I, I really want to underline this,
again you know, not to bore anyone, but my expierence with the parks and living directly
across and working directly across from them is they are, there's two problems: one is
lack of capitalization, and two is care. And really, if you were to visit them and look at
them they're beyond appalling from the standpoint of the way that they're cared for. And
so I want, I want to just underline and underscore my concern there.
And then the other one that I have, as well, is with my last six years of my interactions
with the Police Department. I'm not an authority on this, but I'm going to suggest that
they might be under-compensated for the job that they do. And I know that in the Kihei
area that we're undermanned severely in that area. And one of the ways that I
experienced this was when I was on a KP AT patrol, we had some ice users in the
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park -- as you understand as a citizen's patrol we're really, our hands are tied to
observation only -- and at the time there was a simultaneous emergency, and we were a
half an hour away from being able to rouse an available police officer to come and deal
with these kids that were behind the Kihei Library at the time.
So, I really want to emphasize the fact that, I think, from the standpoint of just an
overview of this budget and looking and not knowing how much of it's actually going to
apply to the Kihei area in particular, is that the police situation, my observation, they're
undermanned severely and we need some real help in that area. And in it, from a positive
standpoint another gentleman mentioned the fact of some creative ideas of perhaps trying
to get police on bicycles and that kind of thing to interact with these kids that are in the
park and that are causing a lot of commotion. And the, they're the kids that are going to
become the problem very soon as adults. So, I appreciate you listening to me tonight and
just wanted to underscore those two very, very important issues for the South Maui area
both from a standpoint as a resident and, and for tourism. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Frazier. Members, any questions? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted you to realize that one of the problems with the
setting of the salaries for their police officers is that it's done through negotiation, which
takes place on Oahu and it covers Statewide. So, we have a little leeway with regard to
cost of living, but it's pretty much constrained by those negotiations.
MR. FRAZIER: That's very unfortunate.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any questions? Hearing none. Mr. Frazier, thank you very much.
MR. FRAZIER: Thank you very much for your time, I appreciate it.

.. .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: I'm going to call again for Amity Mason, Ms. Mason, are you here this
evening? Is there anybody else who has not testified this evening that would like to share
their comments? Now is your opportunity to come forward. Hearing none, Members,
the Chair would also like to recognize that we did receive written testimony from
Ms. Madge Schaefer of Kihei. And in a nutshell, she's protesting the scheduling of the
budget hearings as far as the timing that the meeting in Hana as well as the meeting here
in Kihei was brought forward. And so we will take note of this and in the future we will
look at future considerations to, to the budget hearings.
However, again I have to reemphasize that this is not the only one shot, that this is over
and above what the requirements are for us to have public hearings. We are required to
have one through our Charter and this we just provide an opportunity to get feedback
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from the community throughout the County. And it just so happened Kihei and Hana
ended up first this time around.
So, we apologize for any inconvenience that it has caused and we're going to be looking
at it very closely in the future. So, we want to thank Ms. Schaefer for providing her
comments. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I think you addressed it, Mr. Chair, and I appreciate that. I
did speak with Ms. Schaefer about this yesterday and so she sent this letter to me and I
will be addressing it to her directly and explain to her the situation. Also, I understand
there is a Corp. Counsel opinion regarding the posting of the agenda. I somewhat agree
that it's kind of difficult to take testimony on something that you haven't had a chance to
read. So, I think there's questions about that, but because it's such a tight schedule and
we have so many places we have to go I understand that this is just the way, you know,
the dice rolled this time around. So, I appreciate your consideration. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Hearing no other business for this evening, this Budget and
Finance meeting for March 17, 2005, is adjourned. Happy Paddy's day, everybody .
. . . (gavel) . ..

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: RC)
ACTION:
ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

8:09 p.m.

Transcribed by: Ann Freitas
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